
 

  

Minutes of The Pepper Foundation Annual General Meeting 

Held on Wednesday 6th March 2019 at 19.30 

Held in Old Hall, Berkhamsted School, Castle Street, Berkhamsted 

 

Members In attendance: Alan Corner, Anthony Partridge, Barbara Brereton, Brian D Gibb, Carolyn 

Partridge, David Bevan, David Coles, Debbie Gibb, Diane Breakwell, Ian Lindsay, Jackie Chambers, 

John Watts, Jonathan Tweed, Judy Birch, Julie Monro, Kerie Ivory, Linda Horsfall, Malcolm Page, 

Mike Stephenson, Moira Massingale, Patricia Daley, Patrick Stevens, Paul Chambers, Richard Gunn, 

Robert Breakwell, Sally Symington, Simon Moran, Steve Cripps, Vicki Massingale. 

 

Members Apologies: Brenda Scott-Oldfield, Daniel Zammit, Daphne Watts, David Soulsby, David 

Twidle, Diana Lindsay, Elaine McNulty, Eric Pillinger, Gill Soulsby, Janet Edwards, Jayne Beckett, 

Kathy Soulsby, Laura McNulty, Lucy Beckett, Maggie Tweed, Margaret Pillinger, Meg Headley, Steve 

McNulty, Sue J Dilley, Trisha Buller. 

 

Also in attendance: Morag Boydon - RG Nurse, Sally Dyer – Pepper, Francesca Lennon, RG Nurse, 

Stewart Marks - RG CEO, Liz Ruff – Ex RG Nurse.  

 

Minutes 

1. Adoption of Minutes of the 2017 AGM held on Wednesday 7th March 2018 
 
Patricia Daley (PD) welcomed the members to the AGM and introduced herself as the Chair of 
Trustees.  PD welcomed Rennie Grove CEO Stewart Marks and Morag Boydon and Francesca 
Lennon from the Children’s Hospice at Home Team.  
 
PD advised that the minutes from the 2017 AGM had been circulated to all members in 
advance of the meeting and she invited the members to formally approve them.  Proposed by 
Mike Stephenson and seconded by Carolyn Partridge the minutes were formally approved by 
the members. 
 

2. Chairman’s Report  
 
PD presented the Chairman’s report and highlighted some of fundraising activities that took 
place in 2018.  PD thanked the Berkhamsted Rotary’s continued support and noted that 
Pepper had received a generous donation even though the event had been cancelled due to 
inclement weather. PD reported that the 1920’s night and Tring Carnival featuring the Pepper 
Voices and Dung Beatles had been successful fundraising events for Pepper.   
 



PD advised that the Pepper Show celebrated its 30th Anniversary and thanked the Pepper 
Show Production Team, cast and crew for their dedication to the flagship event.  She 
confirmed that the event had been another sell out and raised an incredible £25,000.  PD 
commented that corporate sponsorship had contributed to the total funds raised and in 
particular, PD thanked Michael Anthony for their continued support and for supporting the 
Pepper Show launch. 
 
PD highlighted that Pepper received significant donations from the Amersham Rotary and 
Tring Mayor in 2018.  PD also thanked Holywell Haulage for their fundraising activities and 
local schools for their support.  PD advised that a key element of fundraising was received 
from corporate sponsorship and partnerships.   
 
PD thanked our fundraising superstar, Brenda Veitch, who raised over £2000 by abseiling 
down the Spinnaker Tower.  PD advised that Pepper continued to be support by the Ryan 
Ninan Charity Football tournament and we would be taking part later in the summer.  
 
PD advised that a Trust Fundraiser had been appointed and they were responsible for 
managing all applications.  PD confirmed that Pepper had received £73,670 in Trust donations 
this year.  PD thanked the Bateman family for their generosity and continued support for The 
Pepper Foundation.  
 
PD gave an overview of the Reducing Isolation project and advised that a calendar of events 
for all family members had been created.  PD advised that attendance at the family events was 
increasing and the families were thankful that we are able to host these events. 
 
PD thanked our volunteers for their dedication and for supporting our fundraising activities.  
PD commented that Pepper’s volunteer roles varied from supporting the office, the Pepper 
Show and a wide variety of events and expressed gratitude from the Trustees for their 
support. 
 
PD gave an overview of some personnel changes in the Pepper Team.  She advised that Sally 
Dyer’s role had changed and is now the Operations, Support and Event Coordinator.  PD 
advised that Donna Hughes had retired and two Charity Fundraisers had been appointed, they 
would be joining Pepper at the end of March.  PD reiterated that Jo Neale had been appointed 
as the Trust Fundraiser and is a freelance contractor. 
 
PD confirmed that there had also been personnel changes on the Board and noted that Daniel 
Zammit had resigned in January.  PD confirmed that Mike Stephenson had retired from his role 
as PEL Managing Director in September 2018 and thanked him for his involvement with the 
charity and in particular the Pepper Show.  PD also confirmed that Brenda Scott Oldfield and 
Christina Organ had resigned from the PEL Board and thanked them for their commitment.  
 
PD advised that sadly Kath Paterson had passed away.  PD commented that Kath was an 
absolute stalwart for The Pepper Show and that she was dearly loved for her enthusiasm and 
creativity.   
 
PD updated the members on the strategic direction of The Pepper Foundation and confirmed 
that we continue to operate as an independent charity.  PD felt that Pepper continues to have 
a strong brand presence in Hertfordshire and that our plans to further develop relationships 
with corporates will help to raise our profile.  PD noted that Pepper had a new logo and the 
strapline had been updated to ‘raising funds for children’s hospice at home’.  PD noted that as 



part of the re-brand, Pepper would have new marketing materials and a new website would 
be launched later in the year.  PD mentioned that we also aimed to increase our social media 
presence and this responsibility would sit with the new fundraiser.  
 
PD ended her presentation and invited questions from the floor.  No questions were put 
forward. 
 
PD thanked the members and introduced Malcolm Page. 

3. Financial Report 
 
MP welcomed the members to the Finance report and confirmed that the management 
accounts had been circulated to all in advance of the meeting.  MP invited questions from the 
Members, no questions were asked. 
 
MP gave an overview of the income Pepper has received over the last ten years and noted that 
the figures for 18/19 were estimated.  MP commented that income was steady and he 
expected to see an increase when the two new fundraisers were on board. He clarified that 
funding had dropped significantly since the auction ceased in 2015. 
 
MP advised that we were slowly reducing our reserves and Pepper was in a good position to 
fund a large portion of the nursing service costs. 
 
MP presented the overall costs of the nursing service and noted the revenue streams that fund 
the service.  He advised that direct costs increased by 5% each year and that the overheads 
had reduced due to reallocation of funds by Rennie Grove.  MP confirmed that the combined 
grants from Pepper, the DoH and Children in Need funded 92% of the service cost. He 
confirmed that Pepper had made a grant of £310K in 2017/18.  MP advised that Pepper would 
make a smaller grant to Rennie Grove in 2018/19 and anticipated this would be £200K but 
Pepper hoped to make an additional grant of £50K.   
 
PD thanked MP. 

 

 
4. Appointment of Independent Examiner 

 
MP recommended that Eliot Tyler-Waddington be appointed as the Independent Examiner for 
a second year.  Proposed by Richard Gunn and seconded by David Bevan. 
 

5. Election of Trustees 
 
PD advised that Pepper was recruiting for two vacant positions on the Board and asked 
members to contact her directly should they wish to apply.  PD advised that she was seeking 
individuals who would be willing to lead on projects and initiatives for the charity. 
 
PD confirmed that resumes from Trustees seeking election had been circulated with the AGM 
papers. PD advised that in accordance with The Pepper Foundations rotation policy, Julie 
Monro and Malcolm Page were standing down and seeking re-election.  PD confirmed that as 
the Board of Trustees had vacancies it was not necessary to cast a vote for re-election.  PD also 
confirmed that David Bevan was seeking election as a new Trustee and no vote was required 
due to vacancies.  PD confirmed that David Bevan was formally elected as a Trustee and 
Member of Pepper. 



 

6. Short Presentation 
 
PD introduced Morag Boydon, Clinical Nurse Specialist to the Members. 
 
MB gave an overview of the children’s caseload and advised that this year they had received 
21 new referrals, 10 patients had been discharged and sadly 4 children had received end of life 
care from the service. 
 
MB introduced Sam Howard, Director of Nursing to the members and gave an overview of the 
current structure of the team.  She confirmed that Katie Mohun had been appointed as 
Healthcare Assistant in May and this was a new role within the team.  She advised that the 
HCA role was non clinical and Katie planned respite/play visits with children.  MB advised that 
Katie was working with Sally Dyer on developing the family activities.  MB confirmed that 
during the last six months we had seen a significant increase in attendance at these events.  
MB explained that the event programme now catered for all members of the family and we 
offered a wider variety of activities for them to attend. 
 
MB reiterated that they had seen a significant increase in referrals this year and that they were 
working closely with the community nurses to help identify children who would benefit in the 
local area. MB advised that the team were undertaking a review of the referral process and 
would also be reviewing the geographical area in which they care.  MB explained that they had 
identified areas within Hertfordshire and Buckinghamshire where a children’s hospice at home 
service did not operate and they were hoping to fill these gaps.   
 
MB presented a case study of a patient that had recently been supported by the service. 
 
PD thanked Morag for her presentation. 
 
Robert Breakwell, Founder of The Pepper Foundation expressed his gratitude to the Children’s 
Hospice at Home Team.  He commented that he was thrilled to hear that the team was 
growing and that they were extending the area that care was provided, he hoped that more 
families could benefit from the vital care that the team deliver.  RB thanked the Trustees for 
their continued support of Pepper. 
 
PD concluded the AGM at 20.30. 

 

 


